
   
1501 Omni Way, St. Cloud, FL 34773  

November 14, 2010  

Mr. F. Thomas Lubozynski, P.E. 
Waste Program Administrator 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
Central District 
3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232 
Orlando, Florida 32803-3767  

Subject: Status Report of Methane Gas Migration Investigation 
J.E.D. Solid Waste Management Facility 
Osceola County, Florida   
Permit Nos. SC-0197726-004 and SO49-0199726-005  

Dear Mr. Lubozynski:  

At the request of Ms. Kimberly Rush of your Department, Omni Waste of Osceola County, 
LLC (Omni) is submitting the enclosed status report updating activities related to the 
methane gas migration investigation at the J.E.D. Solid Waste Management Facility 
(facility). Provided below is a discussion of activities completed since receiving the 
comments and recommendations outlined in your letter dated July 6, 2010 (provided as 
reference in Attachment A). The information provided below is outlined in relation to the 
format of your letter.  

Probe Pair Trending Analysis:  

Omni’s engineering consultant, Golder Associates Inc., completed daily monitoring of the 
permanent and temporary gas probes during the period August 23rd through August 27th. 
Each probe was initially monitored for percent methane and then purged for an 
approximate ten minute period. The initial reading was recorded within a two minute 
period, typically when the reading appeared to stabilize. This procedure was repeated for 
each of the five days of monitoring. Monitoring results are provided in Attachment B. 
Please note that monitoring results for additional temporary probes are listed on the 
monitoring logs for August 24th through August 27th. Additional temporary probes were 
being installed at the same time the daily monitoring was performed and the additional 
probes were monitored as installation was completed. Installation details for the additional 
temporary probes are discussed later in this letter report.  

Based on review of the monitoring results provided in Attachment B, there does not appear 
to be a significant indication that a “gas bubble” condition was occurring between the 
paired permanent and temporary gas probes that would explain periodic higher results in 



 
the outer permanent probes than that monitored in the temporary probes located closer to 
the waste mass. One possible condition that may have influenced the results were the 
saturated conditions noted within the storm water retention area during the monitoring 
event. Generally, the storm water retention area contained standing water in the vicinity of 
the probes as noted on the monitoring logs. Omni has schedule another round of daily 
monitoring to occur the week of November 15, 2010. This round of monitoring will be 
completed under dryer conditions (while the storm water retention areas are dry) to allow 
for comparison of results.  

Gas Sampling and Analysis:   

Omni’s engineering consultant, Mr. Dick Prosser of GC Environmental, spoke with Mr. 
Abu-Shaban about his paper titled Fingerprinting and Forensic Techniques for Landfill 
Gas Geochemical Assessment, 2006, and he indicated that his paper was written to provide 
information on distinguishing between biogenic (landfill gas and swamp/marsh gas) and 
thermogenic gas (pipeline gas and oil field gas), not between two biogenic sources. Omni 
does not believe there is thermogenic gas present at the facility, therefore, this analytical 
approach would not be appropriate. Omni wishes to continue with other sampling and 
corrective action measures as outlined in your recommendation letter and this status report 
before initiating further fingerprinting analysis efforts. Omni’s recommended approach is 
to continue efforts in controlling gas migration nearer the waste limits and then follow with 
additional fingerprinting analysis to confirm other possible sources of methane gas near the 
property boundary.  

Potential Migration Beneath Dry Retention Areas:  

See above comments and further discussion below.  

Proposed Actions (Refer to FDEP Letter Attachment A):  

1. Omni requests to delay further fingerprinting analysis at the temporary and 
permanent probes until a suitable approach can be developed based on further 
evaluation of gas monitoring data and the effects of implemented corrective action 
measures.  

2. Omni has submitted an intermediate permit modification application to your 
Department to connect the leachate sump manhole risers to the Gas Collection and 
Control System (GCCS). The application was deemed complete on October 26, 
2010, and a final determination will be made by December 26, 2010. Omni 
anticipates the permit modification will be issued in late December and will be 
prepared to complete the sump tie-ins shortly thereafter.  

3. Omni conducted an investigation of the cap integrity at the Cell 4 sump area and 
other areas at the base liner and closure liner tie-in locations in June and July. 
Several areas were discovered near the sump manholes of Cells 1, 2 & 3, at the tie-
in location of the base and cap liner systems at Cells 1 through 4, and gas well 
boots in Cells through 4 that required repairs to eliminate landfill gas leakage and 
migration. Provided in Attachment C is a report by Environmental Planning 



 
Specialists Inc, dated August 2, 2010, that summarizes the investigation and repair 
work. Omni will continue to monitor areas for possible leaks and perform repairs as 
necessary.  

4. Total organic content sampling of subsurface soils near selected probes is 
scheduled for November 16, 2010. The presence of standing storm water runoff in 
the retention areas has prevented TOC sampling prior to this date. Laboratory 
analysis will be performed using Method SD1, S3 as approved by the FDEP via e-
mail correspondence dated August 25, 2010.  

5. Over the past four months Omni has concentrated efforts on increasing the 
efficiency of the GCCS within Cells 1 through 4 (increasing vacuums at selected 
wells and well field balancing) and has seen an increase in the flow rate through the 
landfill flare system. Initially the flow rate at the flare averaged approximately 
1,900 standard cubic feet per minute (sfcm), increased to approximately 2,400 scfm 
after initial GCCS balancing efforts, and then decreased over time to approximately 
2,100 scfm. In August Omni completed installation of additional gas collection 
wells for the Sequence 3A project. When vacuum was applied to the new wells, the 
flow rate at the flare system increased to approximately 3,100 scfm and has since 
dropped to 2,500 scfm. Omni will continue efforts to balance the GCCS to increase 
the efficient to the extent possible while maintaining compliance with the facility’s 
Title V permit.  

6. In August Omni installed ten temporary ground water piezometers in the storm 
water retention area to monitor the ground water table elevation near selected 
permanent gas probes. Two 1-inch diameter PVC piezometers were installed at five 
locations near an adjacent permanent gas probe as shown on Figure 1 (see 
Attachment B). One piezometer was screened approximately 1-3 foot below ground 
surface and the second screened approximately 3-5 feet below ground surface. Well 
construction diagrams and recent monitoring data are provided in Attachment D. 
Initial monitoring results from August through November of this year indicate the 
possible presence of non-saturated zones between the two piezometer pairs. Omni 
will continue to monitor the piezometers and evaluate the results for any trends 
related to gas migration. Additionally, subsurface soil conditions evaluated during 
the forthcoming TOC field work may be useful in identifying subsurface soil 
conditions supporting the piezometer monitoring data.   

7. In August Omni installed additional temporary gas monitoring probes (TGP 4 
through TGP-13) on the backslope of the perimeter disposal berm, directly across 
from a permanent gas monitoring probe. These additional temporary probes were 
included in the monitoring network along with existing temporary probes TGP-1, 
TGP-2 and TGP-3. The temporary probes were screened from an elevation of 
approximately 80’ below ground surface (BGS) to within one foot of ground 
surface (approximately 89’ BGS). Elevation 80’ BGS is the lowest elevation of 
waste placement within the disposal cells and meets the requirements of Rule 62-
701.530(2)(a), Florida Administrative Code. The locations of the temporary probes 
are shown on Figure 1 provided in Attachment B. Well construction diagrams are 
being completed and will be submitted under separate cover. 



  
8. Omni has continued with monitoring efforts for the temporary and permanent 

probes since August and has noted varying results. As shown in the latest round of 
monitoring completed on November 5, 2010 (provided in Attachment E), several of 
the temporary probes were reported at zero percent methane (TGP-4 through TPG-
13). However, several permanent probes paired with the temporary probes continue 
to show elevated readings of methane (GP-14 through GP-22). Paired probes TGP-
1/GP-10, TGP-12/GP-14 and TGP3/GP-18 are located near vertical sump manhole 
locations. Omni believes connection of the sump manholes to the GCCS will allow 
additional efficiency in controlling landfill gas migration in these locations.   

Additional Actions Proposed by the Department (Refer to FDEP Letter 
Attachment A):  

9. Omni has further reviewed the idea of excavating a trench to groundwater along 
probes GP-18, GP-19, and GP-20 and is concerned about having an open trench 
that would allow direct contact of storm water run-off with the groundwater table. 
Omni is open to further discussion with the FDEP on alternative options, including 
geomembrane liners.  

10. Completed as discussed above.  

Additional Request by Omni    

Omni requests FDEP approval to abandon the existing permanent gas probes and replace 
them with new permanent gas probes in the same location, however, with a different screen 
interval. Due to different screen intervals between the permanent and temporary probes, it 
is believed the facility’s water table may be influencing the monitoring results when 
comparing results between paired probes and seasonal variations. The existing permanent 
gas probes are screened from approximately 74’ to 80’ BGS and the temporary gas probes 
are screened from approximately 80’ to 88’ BGS. The bottom screened elevation of 80’ 
BGS for the temporary probes represents the lowest elevation of waste fill in the disposal 
cells (top of protective cover elevation in the sump areas). Omni requests to install the new 
permanent probes with a bottom screen interval at 80’ BGS.   

I hope the information provided here-in meets with your approval. If you have any 
questions or require additional information, please contact me at (904) 673-0446 or 
mkaiser@wsii.us

 

at your earliest convenience.  

Sincerely,  

  

Mike Kaiser 
Waste Services, Inc. 
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THE TEMPORARY GAS MONITORING PROBES AND THE
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